The Commissioners' Court of Tom Green County, Texas, met in Regular Session Februar... Page 1 of 2

Tom Green County Commissioner's Court April 10, 2001

The Commissioners' Court of Tom Green County, Texas, met in Regular Session April 10, 2001, in the Edd B. Keyes Building, with the following members present:

Clayton Friend, Commissioner of Precinct #1 Karl Bookter, Commissioner of Precinct #2 Jodie R. Weeks, Commissioner of Precinct #3 Richard Easingwood, Commissioner of Precinct #4 Michael D. Brown, County Judge Elizabeth McGill, County Clerk and Ex-officio Clerk of the Commissioners' Court

Judge Brown called the meeting to order at 9:32 AM. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and Commissioner Friend gave the invocation.

Judge Brown moved to accept the Consent Agenda, with the exclusion of item E., as presented:

A. The approval of the Minutes from the Regular Session, April 3,2001.

B. Approved to pay the bills in the Minutes of Accounts Allowable in the amount of \$163,195.27 and approved the Purchase Orders in the amount of \$29,075.83.

C. Accepted Personnel Actions as presented:

The following salary expenditures are being presented for your Approval:

NAME	DEPARTMENT	ACTION	<u>EFF. DATE</u>	GRADE/ <u>STEP</u>	SALARY
Muncey, Keith S. Sydlowski, Lezlee Longoria, Margarita	Jail Library Veh. Registration	New Hire New Hire New Hire	4/5/01 4/10/01 4/9/01	16/1 N/A 10/1	\$811.80 s/m \$6.00 /hr \$603.73 s/m

The following personnel actions are presented for Acknowledgement and as a matter of record:

<u>NAME</u>	DEPARTMENT	<u>ACTION</u>	<u>EFF.</u> DATE	GRADE/ <u>STEP</u>	<u>SALARY</u>
Bradford, Billie B.	Jail	Dismissal	4/2/01	16/1	\$811.80 s/m
Griffin, Gary W.	Sheriff	Resignation	4/8/01	12/1	\$666.25 s/m
Vella, Julia V. Garza, Catressa D.	Veh Registration CSCD (218)	Resignation Salary Increase	4/4/01 4/1/01	10/1 N/A	\$603.73 s/m \$743.58 s/m

D. Accepted the Indigent Health Care Monthly Report as a matter of record and recorded with these minutes Motion was seconded by Commissioner Weeks and all voted in favor.

Herb Straach – Templeton Construction reported that an agreement could not be reached with the erector, Vigger's Construction, on the Roy K. Robb Post Adjudication Center, so therefore they were going to have an independent Contractor, Toby Galindo, to do the needed repairs.

The cut stone limestone will arrive today and the finishing of the south side will finished soon. The concrete contractor, the electricians, and the plumbers are continuing to work on Phase III.

They have started cooking in the kitchen of Phase I, but the fire sensor needs to be moved from above the confection ovens so it doesn't set off the alarm.

Bids were opened March 23, 2001 for the flooring, millwork and the seating in Phase III. (Spreadsheet, with the 2 lowest

bidders is recorded with these minutes)

Judge Brown moved to award the bid for the carpet, for the Courtrooms in Phase III, to Concho Carpet in the amount of \$51,768.00. Commissioner Friend seconded the motion and all voted in favor.

Judge Brown moved to award the bid for the ceramic tile for the bathrooms in Phase III, to Concho Carpet in the amount of \$19,193.48. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Bookter and all voted in favor.

Commissioner Weeks moved to award the bid, for the millwork in Phase III, to Gunckel Architectural Wood of Seguin, TX in the amount of \$129,820.00. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Friend and all voted in favor.

The award of the bid for the seating in Phase III will be postponed until samples can be obtained for comparison.

Judge Brown moved to approve the Purchasing Policy with the revisions as presented. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Weeks and all voted in favor.

The Auditor's report will be postponed until next week.

Commissioner Easingwood moved to approve the blocking off of the road, through Pugh Park to vehicular traffic, during the Toe Nail Trail Days Celebration, June 9th & 10th, 2001, as requested by the Christoval Chamber of Commerce. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Weeks and all voted in favor.

There were no issues relating to the Tom Green County Subdivision and Manufactured Home Rental Community Development Regulations.

Line item transfers was postponed until next week.

Future Agenda Items:

- 1. Redistricting April 17, 2001
- Consent Agenda: Approve Extension Service Travel Report Approve recreation of Deed records in the County Clerk's office
- 3. Auditor's report
- 4. Line item transfers.
- 5. Budget

Announcements:

- 1. Ribbon cutting ceremony & dedication of the Mullin's Crossing Bridge----Friday, April 13, 2001 at 10:00 A.M.
- 2. Leadership San Angelo---Thursday, April 12,2001, 1:00 P.M. in the Commissioner's Court Room
- 3. Mosquito Control
- 4. Flood irrigation beginning

Meeting was adjourned at 10:27 A.M.

Michael D. Brown, County Judge

Elizabeth McGill, County Clerk and Ex-Officio Clerk Of the Commissioners' Court

Form 105 1.00

CIHCP MONTHLY FINANCIAL/ACTIVITY REPORT

County Name Tom Green County

Report for the Month/Year of MARCH_2001

I. Application/Case Data

	Cases	Persons
Applications Approved During Report Month	51	53
Applications Denied During Report Month	9	9

II. Creditable Expenditure During Report Month

Physicians Services	1. \$27,072.12	
Prescription Drugs	2. 21,554.15	
Hospital, Inpatient Services	3. 87,567.70	
Hospital. Outpatient Services	4. 94,187.83	
Laboratory/X-Ray Services	5. 7,372.99	
Skilled Nursing Facility Services	6. 0	
Family Planning Services	7. ₀	
Rural Health Clinic Services	8. 0	
State Hospital Contracts	9. ₀	
Optional Services	10. 1,454.33	
Total Expenditures (Add #1-#10)		11. 239,209.12
Reimbursements Received	12.(242.81)	
6% Case Review Findings (S in error)	13.(0)	
Total to be deducted (Add #12-#13)		14.(238,966.31)
Credit to State Assistance Eligibility/Re	eimbursement (#11 minus #14)	15.

STATE FISCAL YEAR (Sept 1 – Aug 31) TOTAL \$ 1,156,755.31

General Revenue Tax Levy (GRTL)S 16,028,709.00

8% of GRTL \$ 1,282,297.00 6% of GRTL \$ 961,723.00

4-4-01 Signature of Person Submitting Report

Print Name and Title LADON BLASINGAME IHC ADMINISTRATOR

Eligible Cases 191 Eligible Individuals 200 Ineligible Cases 208 Ineligible Individuals 216

	a company and	
		COMMERCIAL CAPANETS
Red Oak)	129 830.00 WILLIES BOND - RED ORK MATERIAL Sed Oak	BUNCKEL RACHITECTURAL KERD
Bit on (Birch)	126.522.00-0MIT BOLD 2628.00 0MIT BULLET PRE 1	TERRELL MEG
renergement of the second s		99535 BUDA WOODWORKS
- ver blen dater		MILL ROBKS
		MID TEX OF MIDLAND
A Constraint of the second	to solo	CONCHO CARPET
	20-975.00 "10 AUNO	(ALLOW) AYS CRIBPETS
		25,000 KELLY CABROLL
		OFBE MIG TILE
		CALLOW RY CAOPETS
	55, 177.13 HOUDES FIR PREP & BOND	SMITH CRIPPETS
		MID TEX OF MIDLAND
		KISER LARPET
		48,000 RLADDIN CABPET
	157, 768.00) HOLLING ZAR OLA ZAULUNI	CAPPET CONCHO CARPET
	/	-
	Tom GREEN COUNTY BID OPENING 3-23-01	Tom GREEN C

,

.

.....

.

TOM GREEN COUNTY



PURCHASING POLICY

January, 2001

1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

.....

,

Page 3	INTRODUCTION
Page 4	STATEMENT OF GENERAL POLICY
Page 5PURC	HASING AUTHORITY AND GENRAL GUIDELINES
Page 7	
Page 8	PURCHASE OF MATERIALS, AND SUPPLIES
Page 10	BIDDING PROCESS AND PROCEDURES
Page 12	SPECIAL PURCHASES
Page 16	INSPECTING, TESTING AND RECEIVING
Page 17	COUNTY-OWNED SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT
Page 19	LEGAL BASIS FOR PURCHASING

2

INTRODUCTION

This manual contains the authorized procedures for purchasing by County officials and employees. These procedures are promulgated by the Tom Green County Commissioners' Court, and changes in the contents of this manual shall be made only by the Commissioners' Court.

County purchasing procedures are governed by Texas statutes; and these statutes, including interpretations of them made by Texas courts, are the ultimate authority on the validity of purchasing procedures. Because the procedures described in this manual are based on state law, this manual, in many instances, contains language taken directly from statutes, and paraphrases of and broad generalizations about Texas statutory law have been included where appropriate to assist in applying the law in routine situations. This manual cannot address every situation; and when an unusual situation occurs or a difficult legal or factual problem arises, the exact statutory language must be reviewed and analyzed. In every situation, the final authority for county purchasing procedures is the law itself.

This manual is for the use of Tom Green County employees and officials and is designed to assist them in complying with the laws governing county purchasing procedures. This manual does not create any rights of individuals or entities enforceable against Tom Green County.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT

The County of Tom Green does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age and disability in employment or the provision of services.

Sandy Bradley Purchasing Administrator

Tom Green County Commissioners' Court

County Judge Michael D. Brown

Clayton Friend, Commissioner Precinct 1

Karl Bookter, Commissioner Precinct 2

Jodie Weeks, Commissioner Precinct 3

Richard Easingwood, Commissioner Precinct 4

I. STATEMENT OF GENERAL POLICY

It is the policy of Tom Green County that all purchasing shall be conducted strictly on the basis of economic and business merit. This policy is intended to promote the interest of the citizens of Tom Green County.

To avoid violation of or the appearance of violation of the policies in this manual, county employees and officials are prohibited from:

Seeking or accepting, directly or indirectly, any loans, services, payments, entertainment, trips or gifts of merchandise or money in any amount from a business or an individual doing or seeking to do business with the county.

It is important to remember that county purchasing operates in full view of the public. In order to assure an open purchasing process and economy in purchasing, the Commissioners Court has determined that competitive bidding will be used as much as possible in the purchase of goods and services for the County.

Tom Green County intends to maintain a cost effective purchasing system conforming to good management practices. To be successful, the system must be backed by proper attitudes and cooperation of not only every department head and official, but also every supervisor and employee of Tom Green County. The establishment and maintenance of a good purchasing system is possible only through cooperative effort.

The responsibility of purchasing ultimately rests with the Commissioners' Court. The Purchasing Administrator, as an agent of the Commissioners' Court, aids in the purchasing process but is subject to the Court's direction as to reasonable specifications and maximum prices on items to be purchased.

The purchasing process is not instantaneous. Time is required to complete the steps required by State law. In order to accomplish timely purchasing of products and services at the least cost to Tom Green County, all departments must cooperate fully. Prior planning and the timely submission of requisitions are essential to expedite the purchasing process and to assure that the process is orderly and lawful.

4

II. PURCHASING AUTHORITY AND GENERAL GUIDELINES

Authority to make County purchases resides in either the County Purchasing Department or the Commissioners' Court. The Purchasing Department is responsible for making purchases of supplies, materials, equipment, and for making contracts for repairs to County owned property, except in cases where competitive bids are required by law. All competitively bid contracts are made by and through the Commissioners' Court. Such purchases made on competitive bids shall be supervised by the Purchasing Administrator in accordance with the purchase contract. (Code, Chapter 262.011(e)). Competitive bidding is generally required on all purchases or repair contracts for \$25,000 or more.

General guidelines for purchasing and utilization of this manual are as follows:

- (1) Determine whether the county is required to make the purchase by competitive bidding. Generally, competitive bidding is required on any purchase likely to equal or exceed \$25,000. Unless a bid contract for the goods or services already exists, the items required to be purchased through competitive bidding will be purchased as described in Section V, pp. 10-11. Questions regarding the necessity of competitive bidding should be answered by the Purchasing Department.
- (2) Items not purchased via the Internet will be purchased through the Purchasing Department, as described in Section IV, p. 8.
- (3) Other Purchases -- Special procedures are available for and applicable to the purchase of particular goods and services, summarized as follows:
 - (a) Unbudgeted Capital Expenditures -- purchases not authorized in a Department's current budget must be authorized through a budget amendment by the Commissioners' Court. (See Section VI, A, p.12).
 - (b) Blanket Purchase Orders -- acquisition of goods or services on an "as needed" basis may be authorized in appropriate instances by a blanket purchase order. (See Section VI, B, p. 12)
 - (c) High Technology and Insurance -- as an alternative to competitive bidding, in the case of high technology items and insurance, competitive proposals from vendors may be solicited by the county when, in the judgment of the Commissioners' Court, this procedure is preferable. (See Section VI, C, p.13).
 - (d) Professional and Personal Services -- Professional and Personal Services are exempted from competitive bidding, in which case they are obtained through Requests for Proposals as described in Section VI, D, p. 13.
 - (e) Emergency Purchases -- items otherwise required to be competitively bid may be exempt from the competitive bidding process by the Commissioners' Court if (1) a prompt purchase is required, due to a public clamity, to meet a necessity of the citizens or preserve public property, (2) the purchase is necessary to preserve the public health or safety of a county residents, or (3) the purchase is required due to unforeseen damage to public property. (See Section VI, E, p 14)
 - (f) Work in Progress -- this may be exempted by the Commissioners' Court and paid for by the day, after is performed.

VOL. 70 PAGE 677

(g) Land and Right-of Way Acquisition -- this has been exempted by the Commissioners' Court from competitive bidding.

5

- (h) Sole Source Items -- an item available from only one source may be purchased without competitive bidding, with the approval of the Commissioners' Court, as provided in Section VI, F, p. 14.
- (I) Equipment Maintenance Services Equipment -- Maintenance is arranged through the Purchasing Department as described in Section VI, G, p. 15.

III. ACQUISITION OF OFFICE SUPPLIES

- A. Office supplies purchased from the Internet
 - The Purchasing Department will issue a Password and User ID to authorized users. Instructions on how to purchase via the Internet will be given to authorized personnel in each department. For all orders over \$50 a purchase order will be issued.
- B. Item not ordered from the Internet
 - (1) Items not purchased on the Internet will be ordered by requisition and sent to the Purchasing Department. ie; toner for laser printers, ink jet cartridges, copy paper, stamps and special order printed items.
 - (2) Items purchased by requisition will be billed to the department at the end of each month. The County Auditor will debit the department's office supply line item for the correct amount.

7

IV. PURCHASE OF MATERIALS, AND SUPPLIES

A. General

Materials and supplies not available from the current office supply contract via the internet are acquired through the Purchasing Department. Additionally, contracts for repairs to property used by the county are entered through the Purchasing Department.

Methods and procedures for acquisitions through the Purchasing Department are described below:

B. Responsibilities of the Purchasing Department and Requesting Departments

This section of the procedure manual outlines the responsibilities of the county departments when making an acquisition through the Purchasing Department. It should be used as a guide to help departments do their part in purchasing.

- (1) The Purchasing Department's responsibilities are to:
 - (a) Obtain information about and to know the needs of the departments of the County.
 - (b) Secure the product that department needs, at the least cost to the County.
 - (c) Know the sources for and availability of needed products.
 - (d) Aid and to cooperate with all departments of the County to meet their equipment and supply needs.
- (2) <u>Requesting Departments' responsibilities are to:</u>
 - (a) Make requests early enough to allow sufficient time for the vendor to make delivery.
 - (b) Supply detailed specifications of item requested.
 - (c) Supply a written list to the Purchasing Department of any department personnel (besides the Department Head or County Official) who are authorized to prepare and sign requisition forms.
 - (d) Supply a written list to the Purchasing Department of any department personnel (besides the Department Head or County Official) who are authorized to request pickup or phone Purchase Orders.
 - (e) Inform the Purchasing Department or Commissioners' Court of all unusual demands.
 - (f) Take no actions which might be viewed as obligating or committing the County, except in an emergency.
 - (g) Make no commitments regarding commodities or services in the name of the County. Such commitments will be VOID unless they are made by the Purchasing Administrator, the Commissioners' Court, or other agents of the Commissioners' Court.

8

C. Phone Authorized Purchase Order

- (1) The Purchasing Department may authorize a purchase by telephone and give a Purchase Order number over the phone. A Purchase Order number will be assigned immediately over the telephone for an employee to use for immediate pick up of the merchandise. Phone Authorized Purchase Order numbers will be given only when repair, maintenance or replacement parts must be obtained immediately.
- (2) The authorized employee will need the following information before the Purchasing Department can issue a Purchase Order:

9

- (a) Authorized employee name making purchase
- (b) Name of Vendor
- (c) What you are purchasing, quantity, cost
- (d) What department and line item the purchase will be charged to.

V. BIDDING PROCESS AND PROCEDURES

A. Bid Procedures for Budgeted Item -- Purchase over \$25,000

Requesting Department's Responsibilities

- (1) Provide Purchasing Department with the needed specifications to write a complete bid for the requested item.
- (2) Be present at the meeting of the Commissioners' Court during which the bid specifications are discussed.

Purchasing Department's Responsibilities

- (1) Review bid specifications to determine adequacy in light of general requirements and to insure that they are not unduly restrictive.
- (2) Prepare final bid specifications for Commissioners' Court approval.
- (3) Prepare agenda request and notify the Department of agenda date.
- (4) Following approval by Commissioners' Court, mail bid specifications to vendors.

B. General Bidding Information

The Purchasing Administrator will insure publication of the legally required notice. No specifications are to be written with the intent to exclude a possible bidder. Competitive bidding can be let on either a lump sum or a unit price basis. If unit price bids are solicited, the needed quantities of each item are to be estimated in the requisition based on the best available information. The successful bidder's compensation, however, will be based on the actual quantities supplied, furnished or constructed.

C. Bid Opening

Following receipt of bids by Purchasing Department, bids will be publicly opened in Commissioners' Court Conference Room on a pre-set date. Anyone may attend. All sealed bids will be opened on the assigned day at the designated time. Bids will be read aloud and recorded on a bid tabulation sheet. The Purchasing Department will furnish copies of the bid tabulation sheet to the County Clerk to record and the requesting Department.

D. Bid Recommendations

After examining copies of all the bids, the requesting Department will send a written recommendation for bid award to Purchasing at least seven day prior to the deadline for Commissioners' Court agenda. The Purchasing Administrator will verify recommendation to the lowest bid received. Any recommendation to award to other than the low bidder will be presented to the County Judge for resolution prior submission to Court.

After certification of recommendations the Purchasing Administrator will obtain an agenda setting, notify the Department and forward the bid recommendation to the Commissioners' Court.

A contract may not be awarded to a bidder, who is not the lowest dollar bidder meeting specifications unless, before the award, each lower bidder is notified by the Purchasing Administrator of the proposed award and offered an opportunity to appear before the Court and present evidence concerning the lower bidders responsibility.

10

E. Bid Award

Bids will be awarded to the lowest and best responsible bidder. In addition to the price, the Commissioners' Court will consider:

- (1) The quality of the product;
- (2) The adaptability of the product to the intended use; and
- (3) The ability, experience, efficiency integrity, and financial responsibility of the bidder.

When only one bid is received by the county, the bid may be accepted if the Commissioners' Court determines the price is fair and reasonable. If the price is not fair and reasonable, the bid is rejected.

If two or more responsible bidders submit identical bids, the bid award will be made by drawing lots or as directed by the County Judge.

F. Bid Bonds

A vendor awarded a contract may be required to post bond. If it is required, the Commissioners' Court will include the requirement in the bid advertisement. A performance bond is required for all contracts in excess of \$100,000 (262.032). The performance bond amount which will be required shall not be less than 5% of the total contract price.

G. Acquisition of Item After Bid Award

Following award of the bid contract by the Commissioners Court, a purchase order will be entered in the system and the successful Vendor will be notified.

H. A change order may be required when it becomes necessary to make changes after performance of the contract has commenced. The Purchasing Administrator is authorized to approve increase or decreases to the original contract price of \$5,000 or less. The original contract price may not be increased by more than 25%. All change orders requiring increases or decreases to the contract price involving more than \$5,000 must be approved by the Commissioners' Court. All decreases of 18% or \$5,000 or more of the original contract price must have the written consent of the contractor.

Any major alterations of the plans or specifications must be submitted to the Commissioners' Court for approval.

VI. SPECIAL PURCHASES

A. Unbudgeted Capital Purchases

If the needed capital item was not included as part of the County Budget, the following procedures should be followed in order to obtain budgetary authorization:

- (1) The requesting department must fill out an agenda request form and <u>attach a memo justifying the need</u> for the item.
- (2) The requesting department shall include in the memo a cost estimate justifying the need and a statement of whether there are available departmental funds which may be used for this purchase. If funds are not available it would be up to the Commissioners' Court to decide if the item could be bought out of contingency fund.
- (3) The agenda request with the required attachments must be forwarded to the County Judge to be placed on the next Commissioners' Court agenda.
- (4) The department will then present the request to the Court. The Commissioners' Court will approve or decline the request. If approved, normal purchasing procedures apply.

After budget authorization has been granted by the Commissioners' Court, the item will be competitively bid if over \$25,000.

B. Acquisition under a Blanket Purchase Order

(1) Authorization of Blanket Purchase Order

A Blanket Purchase Order authorizes a County department to obtain up to a specified amount of material (services or supplies) on a continuing bases from a vendor. Such Purchase Orders are authorized only by the Purchasing Department in appropriate circumstances, e.g., obtaining parts for vehicle maintenance as needed by the County Shop. Any department foreseeing a definite and regular need for items not available routinely through the supply room should consider contacting the Purchasing Department to investigate obtaining a Blanket Purchase Order for such items.

Blanket Purchase Orders anticipated to exceed \$25,000 during the course of a year must be competitively bid, as described in Section V. No Blanket Purchase Order may exceed budgeted funds for such purchases by the Department.

(2) Procedure for Acquisition under Blanket Purchase Order

All Blanket Purchase Orders will be for goods not delivered at the receiving dock. Procedures to acquire items under these contracts are as follows.

- (a) The department will pick-up or receive items during the course of a calendar month according to the terms of the contract.
- (b) The department will retain receipts and/or delivery tickets for all items picked up or delivered during the month.
- (c) At the end or each month, the department will attach receipts/delivery tickets to the department's copy of the Blanket Purchase Order and forward them to the Treasurer's Office.

- (d) The Treasurer's Office shall enter into the computer information concerning the items received, and payment will then be made.
- C. Insurance and High Technology Items

Insurance and high technology items valued in excess of \$25,000 will be obtained through a proposal process.

"High Technology Item" means a service, equipment or good of a highly technical nature, including:

- (1) data processing equipment and software and firmware used in conjunction with data processing equipment;
- (2) telecommunications, radio and microwave systems;
- (3) electronic distributed control systems, including building energy management systems; and
- (4) technical services related to the above items.

Quotations for insurance and high technology items must be solicited through requests for proposals.

- D. Professional and Personal Services
 - (1) Definition of Professional Services

Professional services are services provided by or within the scope of services provided by licensed physicians, optometrists, architects, certified public accountants, and registered engineers.

Professional services are procured through the Request for Proposal process. The selection of providers of professional services will be based on the competency of the firm or individuals--not on competitive bidding Departments requiring professional services must review the experience and capabilities of the prospective service providers through proposals and interviews.

Definition of Personal Services

Personal Services contracted to be performed by a specific person.

- (2) Procedure
 - (a) Solicitation of Proposals

After approval by the Commissioners Court, Purchasing will send the RFP to potential professional service providers. Purchasing Administrator will order advertisement of the request. The service providers will submit proposals to the Purchasing Department. The Purchasing Department shall open proposals on the date specified in the request for proposals. Confidential and trade secret information, identified as such in the proposal, shall not be publicly disclosed, but the remainder of the proposal shall be open for public inspection following award of the contract.

(c) Evaluation of the Proposals

Purchasing Department and submitting Department may conduct further discussions and negotiations with responsible offerers after the opening. All offerers receive fair and equitable treatment with regard to such discussions and negotiations. An evaluation of proposals shall be made by the Purchasing Department. The evaluation of each service provider will cover at least the following:

General quality and responsiveness,

Organization and personnel, and

Price and price breakdown or price range and cost schedule.

(d) <u>Recommendation</u>

After evaluation, Purchasing will arrange an agenda date, notify the Department, and transmit the recommendation to the Commissioners' Court.

The Commissioners' Court will award the contract. A purchase order will be issued for the services after the contract award has been made.

Any exceptions to the procedures outlined above for professional services must be approved, in writing, by the County Judge. On a case-by-case basis, the County Judge will determine whether to approve exceptions to these procedures.

E. Emergency Purchases

Emergency purchases are authorized in extremely limited circumstances: (a) in the event of public clamity for the benefit of the county citizens or to protect public property; (b) in order to protect the public health or safety of county residents; or (c) when made necessary by unforeseen damage to public property. Depending upon the time of the emergency and type of purchase necessary, one of the following procedures should be followed:

- (1) After hours emergency -- in such instances the department must take the necessary action to obtain the needed goods or services. If, however, the Department is aware that the purchase involves an expenditure of \$25,000 or more, a reasonable effort should be made to contact the County Judge to notify him or his designated representative that the emergency exists. The next working day the Department should contact Purchasing to obtain a requisition and purchase order; procedures applicable to phone in purchase orders may be followed.
- (2) Emergency during working hours -- (a) If the purchase is for less than \$25,000 and budgeted funds are available, phone-in purchase order procedures may be utilized; (b) if the purchase is less than \$25,000 and funds are not available, approval of the County Judge must be obtained by Purchasing prior to acquiring the item using the phone in purchase order procedure; or (c) if the purchase is in excess of \$25,000, Purchasing must obtain approval of the 3 members of the Court for the purchase and then utilize phone in purchase order procedures.

F. Sole-Source Purchases

An item valued in excess of \$25,000, which would otherwise be purchased by competitive bidding, may be purchased without the necessity of bidding if it is available from only one source. Typical items in this category include patented or copyrighted material, secret processes, natural monopolies, utility services, captive replacement parts or components for equipment, and films, manuscripts or books. Such items may be purchased from a sole source without competitive bidding only after the Purchasing Administrator, in writing, certifies the existence of only one source to the Commissioners' Court and the Court enters a finding of such in its minutes.

G. Equipment Maintenance

Maintenance service on County owned equipment is arranged through the Purchasing Department. The Department requiring maintenance should contact Purchasing, which will initiate one of the procedures described below.

- (1) Equipment under warranty or existing maintenance contract -- Purchasing will contact the appropriate vendor and arrange for the service. After the equipment is serviced, the Department should notify Purchasing that the equipment has been serviced and forward the service ticket to Purchasing for filing.
- (2) Service of Other Equipment
 - (a) Purchasing will contact vendor(s) and obtain estimate(s) of cost. If estimated cost is not justified (e.g., cost of repair exceeds replacement cost or value of equipment), Purchasing will advise the Department and declare the equipment surplus. If the Department objects to the equipment being declared surplus, the final decision on whether or not to declare the equipment surplus will be made by the Commissioners' Court.
 - (b) If the cost of maintenance is justified, Purchasing will prepare a requisition and purchase order, notify the vendor of the purchase order, and arrange for the service.
 - (c) After the equipment has been serviced, the Department will notify Purchasing and forward the service ticket to Purchasing.
 - (d) Purchasing will execute the receiving copy of the purchase order, and forward the receiving copy to the Treasurer's Office. The service ticket will be filed by Purchasing.

15

VII. INSPECTING, TESTING AND RECEIVING

It is the responsibility of each County department to see that all purchased items conform to the quantity, quality and specifications of the order.

As much as possible merchandise should be received at the receiving dock before it is sent to the requesting department. After delivery of the merchandise to the requesting department, the department must determine whether the goods are acceptable. If they are not, the Receiving Department must immediately notify the Purchasing Department of the reasons why the merchandise is not acceptable. The Purchasing Department will then compel replacement, cancel the order, or take other appropriate action to obtain correct merchandise.

VIII. COUNTY-OWNED SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT

All County-owned supplies, equipment and machinery must be used only for County business. Elected Officials and Department Heads are responsible for the proper accounting for, maintenance of and use of County equipment.

A. <u>Receipt of New Property -- Tagging</u>

New property of \$3,000.00 or more will be tagged for inventory purposes by the Purchasing Department. The Purchasing Department will tag all furniture, equipment and other property with a potential useful life of one year or more, except small tools, with a "Red County Tag."

B. Transfer of Property

The transfer or trade of any equipment from one Department to another must be handled through the Purchasing Department. In the event as item is no longer required, the Department will notify the Purchasing Department in writing. The Purchasing Department will direct appropriate action to be taken.

The Purchasing Department and other departments are encouraged to make inquiries as to unused or unneeded equipment in the possession or other departments, but the decision as to whether the property is unneeded ultimately rests with the Commissioners' Court.

Anytime property is transferred and inventory transfer sheet must be completed. A copy of the transfer shall be maintained by the Purchasing Department for inventory control.

C. Missing Property

Lost or stolen property must be reported immediately. Reports of loss or theft must be made by the Department Head to the Purchasing Administrator and to the County Auditor. Stolen property must be reported to the proper law enforcement agency, and an official report of the law enforcement agency must be obtained by the Department Head. The Department Head must then report the theft in writing to the Purchasing Department and the County Auditor and attach the official law enforcement report.

If an item cannot be located, the Purchasing Department will request the Commissioners' Court to declare the item lost or stolen. Items declared lost or stolen will be removed from inventory controls.

D. Disposal of Surplus or Salvage Property

The Purchasing Administrator may periodically request that the Commissioners' Court declare property "surplus" (in excess of needs, but still useful) or "salvage" (valueless property of no use). Surplus or salvage property may be sold by competitive bid or auction by the purchasing Administrator as provided in Section 263 of the Local Government Code.

County employees will be given the same opportunity afforded to other persons to bid on and purchase surplus properties offered at a public sale or auction.

E. Inventory Arrangements - Resignation, Retirement or Removal

When an elected Official or a Department Head leaves his or her employment with the county, he or she must arrange with the Purchasing Department for an inventory of all equipment assigned to him or her. The Official or Department Head must notify the Purchasing Department far enough in advance to insure that the inventory can be taken before the Official's or Department Head's termination date. The Purchasing Administrator will provide to the Auditor and the Commissioners' Court a full report, noting any

70 PAGE 689

VOL.

discrepancies between property actually located and property listed on the inventory. The County Official or Department Head will be personally accountable for all missing items.

F. Annual Inventory

On July 1 of each year the Purchasing Administrator shall file an inventory of all property of the County with the County Auditor and Commissioners' Court. The inventory shall include all property identified in subsection A, above.

IV. LEGAL BASIS FOR PURCHASING

A. Article 664-4* -- Professional Services Procurement Act

Counties may not bid contracts for professional services. These contracts instead must be awarded on the basis of "demonstrated competence and qualification for the type of professional services to be performed." Fees must be "fair and reasonable," consistent with and not in excess of published recommended practices and fees of applicable professional organizations, and not in excess of any maximums specified by State law. "Professional services" includes services within the scope of the practice of: accounting, architecture, optometry, medicine of professional engineering; this includes services performed by any licensed architect, optometrist, physician, surgeon, certified public accountant or registered professional engineer in connection with his or her professional employment or practice.

B. Code* Chapter 271, Subch. D -- Purchase Under State Contract

The State Purchasing and General Services Commission may perform purchasing services for local governments (including counties). The county may participate by adopting a resolution. The contents required in the resolution are stated in the statute. A county which purchases under state contract satisfies all competitive bidding laws. (Formerly article 664-7).

C. Code Chapter 171 -- Conflict of Interest

Ownership of certain property or business interests may require that a local public official refrain from participation in votes or decisions and/or refrain from certain acts if the vote, decision or act involves the business interests or property owned by the public official or by a person related to the public official within the second degree of consanguinity or affinity.

"Local public official" includes members of the county governing body or other county officers, whether elected or appointed, paid or unpaid.

A person is deemed to have a substantial interest in a business entity" if":

- Ownership of ten per cent (10%) or more of voting stock or shares of the business entity, or ownership of \$2,500 or more of the fair market value of the business entity; or
- (2) Proceeds received from the business entity exceed ten per cent (10%) of the person's gross income for the prior year.

A person is deemed to have a substantial interest in real property if the interest, whether involving equitable or legal ownership, has a fair market value equal to or exceeding \$2,500. A local public official is deemed to have a substantial interest in the business entity or in land if a person related to the official within the second degree by consanguinity or affinity has a substantial interest in said business entity or land as defined above.

If the local public official has a substantial interest in a business which seeks to do business with the county, the official must file with the county clerk an affidavit stating clearly the nature and extent of his interest. The public official must then abstain from participation in any matter involving or between the county and the business in which he has the substantial interest. In particular, this includes abstention from votes or other decisions regarding the business entity, if it is reasonably foreseeable that action taken on the matter would or might confer an economic benefit on the business. The official must not act as surety for the business if it has work, business or contracts with the county. An official may not knowingly act as a surety on any official bond required of an officer of the county. A violation of any of these is a crime (CLASS A misdemeanor).

VOL. 70 PAGE 691

19

The County Commissioners' Court may, however, contract for services or personal property with a business entity in which a member of the court has a substantial interest if the business entity (1) is the only business entity which can provide the needed service or property within the jurisdiction of the Commissioners' Court, and (2) bids on the contract.

The Commissioners' Court must take a separate vote on any budget item which is specifically concerned with a contract involving a business entity in which a member of the Court has a substantial interest. The Commissioner having the substantial interest may not participate in that separate vote; he may, however, vote on the final budget if: (1) he has otherwise complied with the requirements of Chapter 171, some of which are indicated above, and (2) the matter regarding the business entity with which the member is concerned by virtue of his substantial interest has been resolved. (Formerly article 988b)

D. Code Chapter 262, Subch. A -- County Contracting Agent

The Commissioners' Court may at its discretion appoint an agent with authority to contract on behalf of the county for (1) erecting or repairing county buildings; (2) supervising same; or (3) any other purpose authorized by law. Any contract or other act of such an agent which is properly executed on behalf of the county and is within the agent's authority is binding on the county for all purposes. (Formerly article 1580)

E. Code Chapter 262, Subch. B -- County Purchasing Administrator

It is unlawful (and there may be riminal penalties) for any other person, firm or corporation, other than the County Purchasing Administrator, to purchase any supplies, materials or equipment or to contract for repairs to property used by the county. Section 262.011(d), (m). The county auditor may not draw or approve and the county treasurer may not honor a warrant for any purchase unless that purchase has been made by the County Purchasing Administrator or by competitive bid as required by law.

The Administrator has a number of other duties which are specifically set out in Chapter 262, Subch. B. e.g., the County Purchasing Administrator may cooperate with a City Purchasing Administrator to purchase items in volume. The County Purchasing Administrator is responsible for filing with the County Auditor, the Commissioners' Court on each July 1st and inventory of all county property on hand and belonging to the county.

In order to prevent unnecessary purchases, the County Purchasing Administrator shall transfer any county supplies, materials and equipment from any department not needing them to another department requiring them. Upon so doing, the Administrator shall furnish the departments with a form to sign to transfer such item.

The County Purchasing Administrator may have assistants. The Administrator and her assistants may have any help, equipment, supplies and/or traveling expenses which may be approved and considered advisable by the Commissioners Court.

The authority of the County Purchasing Administrator applies to all purchases of supplies, materials and equipment for the use of the county and its officers, including purchases made by officers paid out of fees of the office or otherwise, regardless of whether the purchase contract is made by officers paid out of fees of the office or otherwise, regardless of whether the purchase contract is made by the commissioners' court or any other officer authorized to bind the county by contract.

F. Code Chapter 263, Subch. D -- Disposition of Salvage or Surplus Property

Surplus property is property in excess of needs, but property that still has some usefulness. Salvage property is defined as property having no value for the purpose for which it was originally purchased.

20

VOL. 70 page 692

Surplus or salvage property may be sold by competitive bid or may be auctioned. It also may be offered as a trade-in on new property of the same general type. If the commissioners' court cannot sell or trade in the property, the property can be destroyed. (Formerly Act. 664-7)

G. Code Chapter 262, Subch. C -- County Purchasing Act (Competitive Bidding)

The legislative scheme contained in the newly codified Local Government Code continues the substance of (no repealed) Article 2368a-5, and became effective September 1, 1987. It is a comprehensive county purchasing statute. The statute includes:

- 1. Competitive bidding requirements, procedures and exemptions;
- 2. An alternative competitive request scheme and proposal procedure for insurance or high technology items (see section 262.030); and
- 3. Bond requirements for bidders.

The competitive bidding procedures must be strictly complied with except for certain specific exemptions enumerated in the statute. These include certain emergencies and cases involving sole suppliers. Failure to follow the bidding requirements of the act may subject the contract to injunction to prohibit its performance. See section 262.033.

All separate, sequential or component purchases of items ordered or purchased by the same officer or department from the same supplier in any attempt to avoid the bidding requirements are treated as parts of a single purchase or contract. 262.023(c). Any county officer or employee who knowingly or intentionally makes or authorizes separate, sequential or component purchases in avoidance of the competitive bidding requirements is guilty of a CLASS B misdemeanor. Automatic and immediate removal of the officer or employee from his county office or position results upon final conviction. 262.034(a).

Intentional or knowing violation of the subchapter is a CLASS C misdemeanor. (Formerly article 2368a-5).

H. Code Chapter 113 -- Approval of Claims by County Auditor

Each "claim, bill and account "against the county" must be filed with the county auditor, allowing sufficient time for the auditor to "examine and approve" the claim before the meeting of the Commissioners' Court at which it is to be approved. Such claim, bill or account may not be paid or allowed until it has been "examined and approved" by the county auditor. Section 113.064(a). The auditor may not audit or approve a claim unless the claim was "incurred as provided by law."

The auditor may not audit or approve and account (i.e., claim) for the purchase of supplies or materials for the county unless a requisition properly signed by the officer ordering the supplies or materials and approved by the county judge is attached to the account (claim). Section 113.901(a). The county judge may, by written order, waive the requirement that he approve requisitions. If this approval requirement is waived, all claims must be approved by the Commissioners' Court in open court. (Formerly article 1 1661 (1), (2)

21